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Delivering efficiency and quality

Our focus is on delivering value for money throug' ' p—
efficiency and the quality of our services,

Our business

Curing the five years to 2005, we are carmying out the largest single
investment programme in the UK water industry, requiring a total
investment of £3 bilion. Such is the scale of the programme, that

£1 of every £4 1o be invested in drinking water and environmental
improverments in England and Wales over the five-year pericd wil

be spent in north west England. In addition, the business is on track to
deliver its efficiency targets over the five year period to 2005. In the
calendar year 2002, the business continued 10 improve quality with
99.81 per cent of drinking water samples meeting the quality standards
at customers’ taps compared with 99.78 per cent the previous year. In
the leng-term, AMP3 capital investment is designed to address
wastewater compliance issues by 2005. In advance of this, operationat
improvements and additional investment have already delivered
enhanced performance of wastewater assets,

Capital investment in the period was in excess of £588 milion. By 31
March 2003 United Utifdes Water had delivered around a third of the
1,200 regulatory capital enhancement outputs required through its
capital investment programme over the 2000-05 period, and was
ahead of the schedule set by the water regulator. This year's
programme includes 920km of water mains rehabilitation, the
completion of water treatment improvements at 20 works, the closure
of 174 unsatisfactory intermittent discharges and the substantial
replacement of assets at 5 wastewater treatment works and 2 pumping
stations. However, the next two years wil be challenging as the
programme peaks both in terms of investment and delivery of cutputs.
We have already put in place robust processes to address this
challenge, such as framework agreements with contractors and
standardising the design and construction of our assets.

Capital investment is anticipated to peak this year at almost £3 million
per day, with United Utilities Water expecting to deliver around 300
combined sewer overflow and quality enhancement ouiputs at its
water and wastewater treatment works.

Our customers

A new payment card systermn was successfully delivered to 450,000
customers this year, supporting our drive to improve income and
debt management. The husiness has also developed new products
including a home telephone sefvice for domestic water customers.

We have maintained performance in the key areas for customer
service and exceeded the expectations set cut in our regulatory
business plan. The level of complaints continues to fall with a 7 per
cent reduction compared to last year. Since 1997/98 we have seen an
overall reduction of 44 per cent.

Customers with special needs receive help in a package of ExtraCare
services. Duning the year, we introduced new services including
freephone contact numbers and a dedicated emergency line for
dialysis customers in the event of an emergency shut-off, We have
signed up to the 'naticnal cold calling protocol” programme, aimed at
reducing the risk from bogus callers. Employees follow a set procedure
when caling on custormers, including the use of a new large-style ID
card to help people with visual impairment.

Qur people

Our UCan culture change programme started two years ago and
initially we focused on unlocking potential, improving self-awareness
and locking at behaviour. We are emphasising the *United” in
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United Utilides — acting as one company with several different business
strands. It is not a quick win, but getting the culture right is absolutely
essential for the success of today’s company. Last year's employee
opinion survey showed a significant improverment over the previous
year and shows that initiatives under way are successful and have had
a huge positive impact on all employees. There is no room for
complacency, and next year we will also focus on career development
and employee well-being. Work is continuing on improving health and
safety, and the year saw a 27 per cent reduction in notifiable and
reportable accidents.

Manchester 2002

In 2002 one of our biggest challenges and successes was the
Commonwealth Games. The United Utilities group supplied the utifity
infrastructure to the main stadium and spent two years planning for the
event, evaluating and managing risks 1o ensure continuity of supplies,
United Uhilities was an official sponsor, and the name and logo were
televised across the woild, The dedication and teamwork involved
from employees was recognised when United Utilities employees were
named Team of the Year at the Utlity Industry Achievement Awards.

Regulaticn

The Water Bill introduces a number of improvements to the requlatory
regime. We welcome its recogrition of long-term water resource
planning principles from the Water Framework Directive. Environmental
and quality issues will continue to drive investment, but customer
issues, such as odour controd, sewer flooding and the continuing reed
to maintain existng assets, also need to be addressed.

We also welcome Ofwat's decision last year to change the minimum
notice period to tesminate the licence to 25 years, increasing certainty
for the benefit of aft stakeholders.

Looking forward

The next price review is currently the biggest issue on the horizon for
the business. By 2005 the water industry will have had 15 years of
incentive based regulation, which means the scope for future efficiency
improvements is diminished. The industry will have to work closely with
the regulator to balance the desire for further substantial quality
improvements against affordable price increases for customers, and
the returns required 1o attract new funding for the industry.

oo i

John Roberts
Chalirman, United Utifities Water PLC
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Operational and financial review

This year we have delivered a capital investment programme of more
than £588 miilion, at the same time as continuing to deliver our target
for efficiencies and improving customer service.

Water supply operations

Drinking water quality remains high with 99.81 per cent compliance
at custamers’ taps in north west England, improving from 99.78 per
cent the previous year.

More than a milion customers are enjoying better water quality with
the commissioning of a new treatment process at Oswestry water
treatment works. The £18.5 milion project was completed two months
ahead of schedule. The process eliminates tihalomethanes from a
supply of up to 205 megalires daily to customers in Cheshire and
Merseyside,

Wastewater operations

The north west of England achieved its best ever bathing water quality
results in 2002, with 36 out of 37 bathing waters passing strict EU
standards compared to only 6 when sampling began in 1988. Coastal
waters have been getting steadily cleaner for over a decade and our
investment programme is continuing to make a real difference 1o the
environment and the quality of life in north west England.

River water quality in north west England continues to improve,
thanks largely to the ongoing investment programme on wastewater
treatrnent. 92.4 per cent of river length in north west England is now
rated as of geod or fair quality. The Environment Agency has
announced that river water quality in the region is the best it has been
for over 200 years.

We take our responsibilities to protect the environment very
seriously. A wide range of initiatives has been intreduced and we are
confident that there will be further improvement in environmental
performance in 2003.

Last year, 29 of 42 district councils decided to end their sewer
management contracts with United Utlities Water and the responsibility
for handling the service for the equivalent of 75 per cent of the
pepulation of the region is now back under our direct control.

Financial results
We continue to invest heavily in our water and wastewater networks.
Gross capital investment for the year was in excess of £588 million
bringing the total investment in improving water and wastewater
services in the north west to approximately £5.8 hillion since
privatisation.

Turnover increased by £19.9 millon to £971.9 million resulting from
income from new connections and the impact of an increase in RPI.

Operating costs increased by £55.1 milion to £621.6 million
resulting frorm cost increases arising from new assets constructed as
part of the capital investment programme and increased bad debt
charges, offset by efficiency savings.

Operating profit decreased to £350.3 milkon from £385.5 million in
the pravipus year.

Net finance charges have also increased due to our continued
significant investment programme. The overall result of the above is a
reduction in profit before tax of £38.9 million to £198.5 million.

Taxation

The current UK mainstream corporation tax credit in 2002/03 and low
charge in 2001/02 reflects the effects of the high level of accelerated
tax allowances arising from the capital investment.

The effective current. ordinary 1ax credit of 4.6 per cent compares
with a charge of 6.6 per centin 2001/02,

The effects of deferred tax increase the effective ordinary tax charge
to 27.0 per cent compared with 9.1 per cent in 2001/02.

Defered tax is £62.9 million in 2002/03 compared with £6.1 millicn
in 2001/02. The increased charge in 2002/03 is primarily due to the
effects of lower gilt interest rates on the discount of the full potential
liability.
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Operational and financial review {continued)

Capital structure and treasury policy

The level of capital expenditure which the company is obliged 1o incur
is such that it cannot be wholly financed by internally generated
resources. As a result, the company raises finance regularly to fund the
lcng term assets required to meet regulatory oblgations. In the year,
total borowings increased by £522.0 milion to £2,983.6 milion, while
net debt rose by £272.8 milion 10 £2,487.4 million.

Net finance charges rose by £3.7 million to £157.8 million reflecting
the increase in borrowings, and movements in interest rates.

Operating within policies approved by the board, the treasury
function does not act as a profit centre and dees not undertake any
speculative trading activity. We ensure sufficient funding is available to
meet foreseeable needs and maintain reasonable headroom for
centingencies.

Long-term borrowings are structured or hedged to match eamnings,
which are fargely in sterling, indexed to inflation and subject to
reguiatory price reviews every five years, Exposure to interest rate
movements for the following 12 months is fargely efiminated at the
start of each financial year using short-term hedges. The credit quality
of counterparties and individual aggregate exposures are reviewed
annually.

Moody's Investors Service rates the credit of United Utilities Water
PLC as A2 on a long basis with a stable outiook and P-1 on a
short-term basis. Equivalent ratings published by Standard and Poor's
Rating Services are A- long-term with a positive outlook and A-2
short-term.

The United Utiities group's €4 bilion medium term and $1.5 billion
short tesm note issuance programmes continue to provide effective
funding.

During the period, the company aranged £427 million of term
funding. This comprises various bonds from the medium term note
programme (£50 million of which remains undrawn at the year end).

We have alse raised £75 million in medium term bank loans and
extended £25 milion of commited bank facilities.

Liquidity as at 31 March 2003 provided by cash and short-term
cuirent investments totalled £455.5 milion. This, together with
undrawn comimitted bank faciliies of £295.0 milion gives the company
liquid pre-funding of the investment programme.

Curing the year the company also drew down £150 milion from a
£200 million borrowing facility provided by the European Investment
Bank signed in December 2000 bringing the total commitment to the
company at 31 March 2003 from the European Investment Bank to
£625.8 million. This valuable source of funding supports our
investment programime over the coming years and is the largest single
external investor in the company.

Interest rate management
We manage interest rate exposure by seeking 1o match financing
costs as closely as possible with the revenues generated by our
assets. Our exposure to interest rate fluctuations is managed in the
medium-term through the use of interest rate swaps, and in the
short-term is managed through the use of financiat futures contracts
traded on LIFFE.

The company's borrowings at 31 March 2003 are set out in note
19 on pages 20 10 22.

o, L=t

Steven Beaumont
Finance Director
United Utilities Water PLC
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* Directors' report

for the year ended 31 March 2003

Principal activities
United Utiliies Water PLC provides water supply and sewerage
services in north west England in accordance with its licence held
under the Water Industry Act 1991.

The Chairman’s statement and the operational and financial review,
to be read in conjunction with this report, appear on the preceding
pages.

Profits and dividends

The results for the year, set out in the profit and loss account on page
6, show that turnover for the year ended 31 March 2003 increased to
£571.9 millicn, an increase of 2.1 per cent over the previous year.
Profit for the year after tax was £144.8 milion (2002 - £275.8 million).
An interim dividend of 15.05 pence per share {2002 - 14.85 pence)
was paid in February 2003. The directors recommend a final dividend
of 30.44 pence per share (2002 - 30.05 pence) for the year to 31
March 2003. Preference share dividends totalled £9.7 million (2002 -
£9.1 million).

Regulation

As required by paragraph 3.1 of Condition K of the licence, the
directors are satisfied that as at 31 March 2003, if a special
administration order had been made under section 23 of the Water
Industry Act 1997 in respect of United Utilites Water PLC, the
company would have had available to it sufficient rights and assets {not
including financial resources) to have enabled the special administrator
to manage the affairs, business and properties of the company so that
the purpose of the order could have been achieved,

The directors have issued a certfficate under Condition F6A of the
Licence stating that the company will have avaitable to it sufficient
financial and management resources and facilities 1o enable it to carry
cut, for at least twelve months, its regulated activities. This certificate
alse confirms that all contracts entered into with any associated
company included all necessary provision and requirements
cencerning the standard of service to be supplied by the company
to ensure that it is able to meet all its obligations as a water and
sewerage undertaker,

Employment policies

Employees are key to achieving our business goals and the
company is committed to improving the skills cf its pecple. The
company respects the dignity and rights of every employee, supports
them in performing various roles in society and challenges prejudice
and stereotyping.

The company is committed to involving employees through open
and reguiar communications about business changes to allow a free
flow of information and ideas.

We participate extensively in Businass in the Community programmaes,
encourage wider opportunities for women and for people from ethnic
mincrities and we actively support employees with disabilities.

Proper attention to health and safety is an indispensable part of
the company’s comritment 1o high standards in every respect of the
business.

The company encourages participation in the group's all employee
share schemes.

Research and development

The company is committed to developing innovative, cost-effective
and practica! solutions for providing high quality services and
standards to our customers, and for the benefit of the wider
community and the development of the business, It seeks 1o take as
part of this process maximum advaniage of wide-ranging expertise,
abilities and facilities within the company.
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Creditor payment policy and practice

The policy is normally to pay suppliers according to agreed terms of
business. These terms are agreed upon entering into binding contracts
and the company seeks o adhere to the payment terms provided the
relevant goods and services have been supplied in accerdance with
the cantracts. The group and company had 44 days of purchases
(2002 - 54 days) cutstanding at the end cf the financial year.

Directors

The directors of the company during the year ended 31 March 2003
are set out below. All were directors for the whole year except where
ctherwise indicated.

Non-executive directors
P G S Entwistle, non-executive director
D E Morton JP, non-executive director

Executive directors

J E Raberts* Chairman (and Chief Executive, United Utilities PLC)
R D Armstrong

J A Barnes

S G Batey”*

S Beaumont

M F Bradbury {resigned 1 April 2003)

C H Elphick

J Lang {appointed 13 February 2003)

Executive directors - resigned during the year
L W Dawson* {resigned 25 March 2003)

*Director, United WUtiities PLC

Details of directors’ interests in ordinary shares of United Utifities PLC
are set outin nete 5 1o the accounts.

Al no time in the year did any director have a material interest in any
contract or arrangement which was significant in relation to the
company’s business.

Auditor

During the year, KPMG Audit Plc resigned as the company's auditors.
The directors used their powers under the Companies Act 1985 to
appoint Defoitte & Touche as the company’s auditors to fill the vacancy
created by KPMG Audit Plc's resignation.

On 1 August 2003, Deloitte & Touche will transfer their business to
Deloitte & Touche LLP, a limited liabiity partnership incorporated under
the Limited Liability Partnerships Act 2000. However, at present they
remain the company's auditors and have signed the financial
statements in that capacity. It is the current intention of the directors to
use the company's statutory power to gve consent to the
appointment of Deloitte & Touche being treated as extending to
Deloitte & Touche LLP at the appropriate time. Accordingly, although
the financial statements have been signed in the name of Delitte &
Touche, a resoluljen for the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche L1LP
will be proposefl athe forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

|

By order of the board
Tim Rayner
Secretary

15 July 2003
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Directors’ responsibilities

in respect of the preparation of financial statements

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and! fair
view of the state of affairs of the compariy and group at the end of

the financial year and of the profit or loss for the financial year. The
company is also required 1o prepare accounting statements each year
which compty with the requirements of Condition F of the ficence of the
company as a water and sewerage underiaker under the Water
Industry Act 1891, The accounting statements may be combined with
the financial statements.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on
pages 6 to 42 the company has used appropriate accounting policies,
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates. Al accounting standards and all Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines issued by the Office of Water Services which they
consider to be applicable to these financial statements have been
folowed, subject to any departure and explanation described in the
notes to the accounts. After making enquiries, the directors are of the

opinion that the group has adequate resources 10 continue in operational

existence {or the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to
adopt a going concern basis in preparing these financial statements,

The directars have responsibiiity {or ensuring that the compaity
keeps accounting records which disclose with reascnable accuracy
the financial position ¢f the company and which enable them (o ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Cempanies Act 1985,

In addition, ihe directars have responsibility for ensuring that the
company keeps proper accounting records sufficient te enable the
historical cost and current cost information required by Condition F of
the licence to be prepared, having regard 1o all relevant Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines. The directors have a general responsibility at
law for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors are required to confirm in the accounting statements
that, in their opinion, the company was in compliance with paragraph
3.1 of Condition K of the licence relating to the availability of the rights
and assets. at the end of the financial year (see page 4).

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of United Utilities Water PLC

We have audited the financial statements of United Utilities Water
PLC for the year ended 31 March 2003 which comprise the profit

and loss account, the balance sheets, the cash flow statement, the

notes to the cash flow statement, the statement of total
recognised gains and losses, the reconciliation of movements in
shareholders’ funds, and the related notes 1 10 25, These financial
staternents have been prepared under the accounting poiicies set
out therein,

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a
body. in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985,
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those mallers we are required to slate to
them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility

to anycne other than the company and the company’s members as

a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the cpinicns we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directars and auditors

As described in the staterment of directors' responsibllities, the
company's directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
law and accounting standards. Our responsibility is to audit the
financial statements in accordance with relevant United Kingdom
legal and regulatory requirements and auditing standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give g trug and fair view and are properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We aiso report if, in our
opinicn, the directers’ report is not consisient with the financial
statements, if the company has not kept proper acceunting
records, if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specified by
law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
company and cther members of the group is nct disclosed.

We read the directors’ report and the cther informaticon
contained in the annual report for the above year as described in
the contents section and consider the implications for our report if
we Decome aware of any apparent misstaterents or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements.

5 United Utilities Water PLC

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom
auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the company and the group,
consistently applied and adequaiely disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
oraer to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irreguiarity or error.
In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentaticn of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and the group as at 31 March
2003 and of the profit of the group lor the year then ended and
have been preperly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985,

Dedathe ok

Deloitte & Touche

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditor
Manchester

15 July 2003
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Consolidated profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March

2002

Note Em

Turnover 1(b) 952.0
Net operating costs {including exceptional credit of £2.9m - 2002 charge of £9.2m) 3 {566.5)
Operating profit 385.5
Net finance charges 7 {148.1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 237.4
Tax on profit on ordinary activites 121.6)
Profit for the finaticial year 215.8
Dividends (203.0
Transfer to reserves 8) 12.8

See accompanying notes o the accounts.
The above profit and loss account relates to continuing operations.

Reconciliations of movements in shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 31 March

Group and Group and

Cornpany Company

2003 2002

ﬁm £rn

Profit for the financial year 2158
Dividends (203.0)
Net movement in shareholders’ funds for the year 12.8
Opening shareholders’ funds 2,176.5
Closing shareholders' funds 2,189.3

There are no recognised gains or losses in the current financial year and preceding financial year, other than as stated in the profit and loss
account, and as such no statement of total recognised gains and losses has been prepared.

5 United Utilities Water PLC
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Balance sheets

as at 31 March  doe 3

Group Cormpany
Nete 2003 . 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10 52539 4,924.7 5,253.9 4,924.7
Investments . 11 - 04 0.4 . 04 0.4
4,925.1 4,925.1
Current assets
Stock 2.9 2.9
Debtors 12 287.9 287.9
lnvestments 13 185.0 185.0
Cash at bank and in hand 24.3 243
723.8 500.1 723.8 500.1
Creditars
Amounts faling due within one year 14 (709.7) {604.0 (604.0)
Net current (liabilities)/assets 14.1 {103.9) (103.9)
Total assets less current liabilities 5,268.4 1,821.2 4,821.2
Creditors
Amounts faling due after more than one year 15 (2,890.9) (2.440.1) (2.890.9} {2,440.1)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 17,18 (249.0) (191.8) {249.0) (191.8)
Net assets 21893 2,189.3
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 6553 . 6553
Share premium account 20 6547.8 <L B4T.8 647.8
Profit and loss account 21 886.2 -825.4 886.2
Shareholders’ funds 2,189.3 21285 2,189.3
Shareholtders' funds may be analysed as;
Equity interests 1,905.1 1,965.9 1,905 1,965.9
Non-equity interests 223.4 2234 2234 223.4
2,128.5 2.189.3 21285 2.189.3

See accompanying notes to the accounts.

Approved by the board of directors on 15 July 2002 and signed on its behalf by:

o ]
Steven Beaumont & j—\%&
Finance Director

7 United Utilities Water PLC
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" Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March Yo e 5

2003 2003 2002 2002
£m; £m m £
Net cash inflow from operating activites 77 650.4
Returns on investments and servicing of finance ’ e B
Interest received P L5 16.3
Interest paid (158.6 (164.3)
Interest element of finance lease repayments (8.0) (7.9)
Dividends received 7.9 -
Non-equity dividends paid (9.1} (9.7)
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance (157.1) (165.0)
Taxation i 5.8 {(11.8]
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible lxed assets {402.0)
Grants and contributions received 4.7
Disposal of tangitle fixed assets 5.4
Net cash outfllow for capital expenditure (391.9)
Equity dividends paid (191.4)
Cash outflow before use of liquid resources 272:8) (109.7)
Management of liquid resources
Short-term deposits - (268.0): 70.5
Financing 548.4 58.3
Increase in cash and overdrafts ' ' 7.6 19.1
Notes to the cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March
2603 2002
....... £m £m
Recanciliation of aperating profit to net cash inflaw from operating activities
Operating profit 3855
Depreciation 228.0
Amortisation of grants and conributions -
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets {4.3)
Stocks increase (0.5}
Debtors decrease 338
Creditors (decrease)/increase 8.0
Movement in other provisions 0.1}
650.4

Net cash inflow from operating activities 6027

8 United Utilities Water PLC
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MNotes to the cash flow statement {continued)

2003 2002
’ ; £m
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt p
Increase in cash and overdrafts in the year 16 . 191
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing (548.4).. {58.3)
Cash used to increase/{decrease) liquid resources 2680 {70.5)
Movement in net debt in the year (272.8) . (109.7)
Net debt at 1 April 2002 (2.214.6) .. (2,104.9)
Net debt at 31 March 2003 (2.214.6)
2002
£m
Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the cash flow statement
Financing
Debt due within a year:
- new shert-term group leans 6.4
Debts due beyond a year:
- new long-term loans 53.0
- repayment of long-term external loans (1.1
Net cash inflow from financing 58.3
At Aprl At Aprl At 31 March " At 31 March
2002 2002 Cashilow Castilow 2003 2003
£ £m £m fm £m
Analysis of changes in net debt '
Cash at bank, in hand 24.3 (21.8)
Qverdrafts (29.8) 29.4 T
7.6
Parent undertaking loans 377 30 40.7
Debt due after one year (2,1765.6) (566.1} (2.731.7)
Debt due within one year ' {66.6} 4.8
Finance leases {199.6) 9.9
(2.384.1) {548.4)
Current asset investments 185.0 268.0
Net debt ~3(2,214.6) {272.8)

United Utilities Water PLC
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. Notes to the accounts

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of United Utlities Water PLC

and its subsidiary (together ‘the group’) have been prepared under the
historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and, except for the treatment of certain grants and
contributions {note {e} below), with the Companies Act 1985.

(b} Turnover
Turnover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of
business for services provided and exciudes VAT,

{c) Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is written off against profit
i the year in which it is incurred.

() Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprise infrasiructure assets (mains, sewers,
impounding and pumped raw water storags reservors, dams, siudge
pipelines and sea outfalls} and cther assets {ncliding properties,
overground piant and equiprment).

i Infrastuciure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of water and wastewater
systemns. Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to increases

in capacity or enhancement of the network and on maintaining the
cperating capability of the network in accordance with defined
standards of service is treated as an addition, which is included at cost
after deducting grants and contributions. Expenditure on maintaining
the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined
standards of service is charged as an operatng cost and is classified as
infrastructure renewals expenditure.

The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the estimated
level of annual expenditure required t© maintain the operating capability
of the network which is based on the company's independently certified
assel management plan.

Employze costs incurred inimplementing the capital schemes of the
company are capitalised within fixed assets.

) Oaher sxsels

Additions are included at cost. Freehold land is not depreciated. Other
assets are depreciated by writing off their cost less their estimated
residual value evenly over their estimated lives, based on management's
Judgement and experience, which are principally as follows:

Buildings 30-60 years
Operational assets 5-80 years
Fixtures, fitings. tools and equipment 3-40 years
Computer software 3-10 years

10 United Utilities Water PLC

i} Carrying value of tangible fixed assels

The carrying values of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment
wherever circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such assels
may not be recoverable.

(e) Grants and contributions

Capital contributions towards infrastructure assets are deducted from the
cost of those assets. This is not In accordance with Schedule 4 t¢ the
Companies Act 1885 under which the infrastructure assets should be
stated at their purchase price or producticn cost and the capital
contributions treated as deferred income and released to the profit and
ioss account over the useful life of the comresponding assets.

The directors are of the opinion that, although provision is made for
depreciation of infrastructure assets (see note (d)) above), these assets
have ne finite economic fives and the capital contributions would therefore
rernain in the balance sheet in perpetuity. The treatment otherwise
required by the Companies Act 1885 would not presert a true and fair
view of the group’s effective investment in infrastructure assets. The
financial effect of this accounting poficy s set outin nete 10.

Grants and contibutions recgivable in respect of other tangible fixed
assets are treated as defermred income, which is credited o the profit and
loss account over the astimated economic lives of the related assets.

() Leased assets
Assets linanced by leasing arrangements which transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee {finance leases) are
capitalised in the balance sheet and the comespending capital cost is
shown as an obligation to the lessor. Leasing repayments comprise
both a capital and a finance element. Where the lease is of a fixed
interest rate nature, the finance element is written off to the profit and
loss account so as to produce an approximately constant pericdic rate
of charge on the outstanding obligation. Where the lease is of a
floating interest rate nature, the finance element written off tc the profit
and loss accounts reflects the floating interest rate charge incurred
during the period on the outstanding ob{igation. Such assets are
depreciated over the shorter of their estimated usefu! lives
and the pericd of the lease.

Operating lease rentals are charged to the prefit and loss account
on a straight line basis over the pericd of the lease.
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(g} Fixed asset investments
Investrnents held as fixed assets are stated at cost less amounts
written off for permanent diminution,

{h) Stocks
Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary Lo recognise
damage and chsolescence.

{i} Pensions

The cempany participates in a number of defined benefit schemes,
operated by United UWilities PLC, which are independent of the
company’s finances, for the substantial majority of its employees.
Actuarial valuations of the schemes are carried out as determined by
the trustees at intervals of not more than three years, the rates of
contribution payable and the pension cost being determined on the
advice of the actuaries, having regard 1o the results of these valuations.
In any intervening years, the actuaries review the continuing
appropriateness of the contribution rates.

The cost of providing pensions is expensed over employees’
working fives. Variations from regular cost are allocated over the
average remaining service fives of current employees, Any difference
between the charge to the profit and loss account in respect of funded
plans and the centributions payable to each plan is recorded in the
consofidated balance sheet as a prepayment or provision.

The company has followed the transitional arrangements of FRS 17
‘Retirement Benefits” in these financial statements. Details of pension
arrangernents and funding benefits are set cut in note 22,

() Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided
at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all iming differences that
have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
ransactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the
future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the
halance sheet date. Timing differences are differences between the
company’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and lesses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recegnised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected
to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Delerred tax is
measured on a discounted basis to reflect the time value of money
over the pericd between the balance sheet date and the dates on
which it is estimated that the underlying timing differences will reverse.
The discount rates used reflect the post-tax yields to maturity that can
be obtained on government bonds with similar maturity dates and
currencies to those of the deferred tax assets or llabilities.

United Utilities Water PLC

(k) Financia! instruments

Debd instrumiants

New borrowings are stated at net proceeds received after deduction of
issue costs. The issue costs of debt instruments are amortised at a
constant rate over the life of the instrument.

st rale swaps and financia fulures

Interest rate swap agreements and financial futures are used to
manage interest rate exposure. Instuments that are designed as a
hedge of a debt are accounted for on an accrual basis, with amounts
payable or receivable in respect of these instruments being recognised
as adjustments to interest expense of the designated liabifity.

Realised gains and losses that occur from the early termination of
such instruments designated as a hedge are deferred and amortised
to interest expense over the period of the hedged position, to the
extent that the original liability remains outstanding.

In order 1o qualify for hedge accounting, the notional amount of the
company’s interest rate swaps and financial futures must not exceed
the amount of its existing variable rate debt, must change the interest
rate characteristics of the underlying debt and the contractual
maturities cannot exceed the maturities of the debt.

Caa'z'emfy SWAS

The company enters into currency swaps to manage ils exposure to
fluctuations in currency rates. Principal amounts sre revalued at
exchange rates prevaling at the date of the company balance sheet
and included in the steriing value of the debt. In order for such swaps
to qualify for hedge acceunting, the forward contract/currency swap
must relate to an existing asset, liability or firm commitment, be in the
same currency as the hedged item and reduce the risk of foreign
currency exchange movements to the company’s operations. Where
they do, exchange gains and losses are taken directly to reserves and
are included in the statement of total recognised gains and losses in
accordance with SSAP 20 *Fereign currency transactions'.
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2 Segmental information

The company oparates in the United Kingdem in one class of business.

3 Net operating costs

Group and company 2002
£m
Employee costs:
Wages and salaries 89.3 g4.8
Social security costs 6.0 5.8
Pension contrioutions (note 22} 6.4 4.3
1017 94.9
Capital schemes (32.1} (30.1}
Charges to provisions 1.1 (5.4)
68.5 59.4
Depreciation:
Owned fixed assets 149.3 121.4
Fixed assets held under finance leases ' 4.2 4.4
Non-infrastructure depreciation 1535 : 125.8
Infrastructure depreciation L 96.7 . 102.2
250.2 228.0
Other operating costs include:
Cther operating costs 263.0
Raw materials and consumables 204
Auditor's remuneration 0.1
Research and development 0.9
Operating leasas: :
- hire of plant and machinery ‘ 14 2.7
~land and buildings 09 0.9
QOther income (note 4) (2.9) (8.9)
3029 279.1
Total net operating costs 6216 566.5

Managed senvice fees and asset charges from group undertakings are contained within other operating costs. Fees payable to Deloitte & Touche
and its associates for non-audit services from the date of thelr appointment as auditors were £0.1 milien, primarily relating to regulatory work. The
audit fee for 2003 in relaticn to the company amounted to £0.1 milion,

Fees payable to the group’s former auditors KPMG Audit Plc and its associates for non-audit services in 2002, were £0.1 million, primarily
relating to regulatory work, The audit fee for 2002 in relation to the company amounted to £0.1 million.

The prior year figures have been restated due to a reclassification of cost from other operating costs to wages and salaries.

4 Other income (see note 3)

2002

£m

Prefit on disposal of fixed assets 4.3
Net rents receivable : g 1.2
Other - 3.4
2.9 8.9

12 United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounts {continued)

5 Directors

The aggregate emacluments of the directors in 2003 amounted to £967,031 (2002 - £879,979). Emoluments comprise salaries, fees, taxable
benelits and the value of short-term incentive awards. The emoluments of the highest paid director (R D Armstrong) in 2003 amounted to

£267,574 (2002: R D Armstrong - £255,847).

At 31 March 2003 and the prior year, the directors and their families had the following interests, all of which were beneficial interests, in the
ordinary shares and options 1o subscribe for ordinary shares in United Utlliies PLC (details of the interests of directors on United Utilities PLC are

dealt with in that company's accounts).

2003
Interestin:shares

2002 or appointment

Interest in shares

Executive Employee Ordinary Executive Employee

option sharesave Shares option sharesave

scheme scheme scheme schema

R D Armstrong 13,017.. 3,767 1823+ 16,799 3,767 2,054
J A Bames 8,765 22,175 {1 11U 7,050 26,924 1.818
S Beaumont 4018 26,984 1,959 26,984 2,054
M F Bradbury 11,845 - 43,364 11,156 43,364 2.679
C H Elphick 9638 . 23,636 11,938 23,636 2,290
P G S Entwistle 1:500 - - 90 - -
Jlang 21 - - - - -

D £ Morton P

Cetails of the employee sharesave scherme and the executive share option scheme operated by United Utilites PLC are given in thal company's

accounts.

Further details of options, including cptions exercised during the year are as follows:

Shiare oplicns Options Weighted Options
al 31 March granted average exercised Market
2002 or on during  exercise price First date Last date during price on
appoirtment the year per share exercisable exercisable the year exercise
Employee sharesave scheme
R D Armstrong 2,054 - 471.5p 1 Mar2003 1 Sep 2003 2.054 592p
- 1.823 490.0p 1 Mar 2006 1 Sep 2006 - -
J A Barnes 1.819 - 556.5p 1 Mar 2006 1 Sep 2006 - -
- 241 490.0p 1 Mar 2006 1 Sep 2006 - -
S Beaumont 2,054 - 471.5p 1 Mar 2003 1 Sep 2003 2,054 589p
- 1,823 490.0p 1 Mar 2008 1 Sep 2008 - -
M F Bradbury 2147 - 471.5p 1 Mar 2005 1 Sep 2005 - -
532 - 500.0p 1 Mar 2005 1 Sep 2005 - -
- 241 490.0p 1 Mar 2006 1 Sep 2006 - -
C H Elphick 2.280 - 500.0p 1 Mar 2007 1 Sep 2007 - -
- 576 490.0p 1 Mar 2008 1 Sep 2006 - -
Executive option scheme
R D Armstrong 3.767 - 529.6p
J A Barnes 22,175 - 732.3p
775 - 479.8p 15 Dec 1997 15 Dec 2004 775 630p
2,519 - 566.9p 20 Jan 1997 20 Jan 2004 2,519 630p
2,519 - 463.4p 6 Jan 1956 6 Jan 2003 2.519 630p
258 - 408.2p  15Dec 1999 15 Dec 2004 258 630p
839 - 4822p 20 Jan 19989 20 Jan 2004 839 B30p
839 - 394 .2p 6 Jan 1998 6 Jan 2003 839 630p
S Beaumont 26,884 - 721.2p
M F Bradbury 43,364 - 679.6p
C H Elphick 23,636 - 582.2p

The mid-market price of a share on the 31 March 2003 was 586.0 pence. The range in the year was 551.5 pence to 668.0 pence.

Summary information is provided as disclosure of all exercisable dates for directors’ share options would be excessive in length. Full details
of directors’ shareheldings and options te subscribe are given in the register of directors' interests.

13 United LUtilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounts {continued)

5 Directors {(continued)

The aggregate notional gain made by directors on the exercise of options during the year (based on the difference between the mid-market price
of a shara on the day which options were exercised and the exercise price) was £15,629 (2002 - £39,911). None of the options shown above

lapsed during the year.

The United Utilities Pension Scheme is an exempt approved pension scheme with defined benefit and defined contribution sections of

membership. It contains sections which are open to all eligible employees. It provides pensions and other benefits to members within Infand
Revenue limits. Al the current executive directors are members and contribute to the scheme. It provides a pension for them on normal retirement,
at age 60 equal to between 1/3Cth and 1/45th of pensionable earnings for each completed year of service. The maximum pension is two thirds of

pensicnable earnings. Early retirement is possible from the age of 50 if the company agrees.

The Finance Act 1989 restricts the pensions benefits that can be paid by the Scheme to directors who joined the company after 1 June 1989
because the earnings cap limits pensionable earnings for calculating benelits. The company has put in place for some of the executive directors
affected separate arrangements, the effect of which is to provide for them the same total pension benefits as for those executives who are not

fimited by the cap. These arrangements are unfunded,
The accrued pension at 31 March 2C03 for R D Armstrong, the highest paid director, was £88,154 (2002 R D Armstrong - £89,235

per annLm).

6 Employees

2002
Licensed utility operations 3,199
7 Net finance charges
2003 2002
£m Em
Interest payable and similar charges:
On bank lpans, overdrafts and other lcans 117.9 105.9
Cn finance leases 2.2 7.9
Group undertakings 514 50.6
Total interest payahle and similar charges 171.5 164.4
Investment income:
income received from current asset investments -
Interest receivable and similar income
- Group undertakings (5.2)
- External {111
Net finance charges 1518 148.1

14  United Utilities Water PLC
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Notes to the accounis {continued)

8 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

(a) Analysis of charge in period

2002
£m
Current tax:
UK corporation tax at 30% (3.:4) 15.5
Pricr year tax adjustments - {5.8) -
Total current tax 155
Deferred tax:
Crigination and reversal of timing differences 62.1
Increase in discount (56.0)
Prior year tax adjustments -
Total deferred tax 6.1
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 53.7 21.6
The prior year tax adjustments are amendments in relaticn to the tax treatment of a finance lease.
(b) Factors affecting tax charge for period
The table below reconciles the notional tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate to the actual charge for taxation.
2003 2002
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities befecre tax 198.5 237.4
% %
UK corporation tax rate 30,0 300
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (26.7)
Other timing differences 32 6
Prior year tax adjustments (2.9) -
Non taxable (income)/costs (0.7) 2.7
Actual current tax rate 4.6) 6.6

The prior year tax adjustments is an amendment in relation to the tax treatment of a finance lease.

15  United Utilities Water PLC
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9 Dividends
2003 2002
£m £m
Interim dividend of 15.05 pence per share (2002 - 14.85 pence) 65.0 64.2
Final dividend of 30.44 pence per share recommended (2002 - 30.05 pence) 131.5 129.7
Preference share dividend 7.0C pence per share {2002 - 7.00 pence) 9.1 9.1
205:6 203.0

United Utilities Water PLC has increased its ordinary dividend payment 1o United Utlities Service Delivery PLC by 1.3 per cent to £156.5 milion
gross for the year. The dividend policy this year is consistent with the management of the economic risks of the business. United Utiflides Water
PLC has also paid a preference dividend of £9.1 million for the year to United Utlities Service Delivery PLC.

10 Tangible fixed assets

Fixtures, fittings Assels

Lang and Infrastructure Operational tools and in course of

hutldings assets structures equipment construction Total
Group and comparty £m £m £m £m £m fm
Cost:
At 1 Apri 2002 199.5 3.278.7 24466 5331 514.5 6,972.4
Additions 1.1 62.9 53.4 24.5 446.9 588.8
Grants and contributions - 9.1 - - - 9.1)
Transfers 1.2 101.4 153.9 281 (300.6) -
Disposals {1.4) - (17.9) (28.3) - {(47.6)
At 31 March 2003 210.4 3,433.9 2,642.0 557.4 660.8 7,504.5
Depreciation:
AL 1 Aprit 2002 51.8 1,044.5 663.2 288.2 - 2,047.7
Charge for the year 83 96.7 102.2 43.0 - 25C.2
Disposals 1.3 - (17.9) {28.7) - (47.3)
At 31 March 2003 58.8 1,141.2 7471.5 303.1 - 2,250.6
Net beok value:
At 31 March 2003 151.6 2.292.7 1,894.5 254.3 660.8 5,253.9
At 31 March 2002 147.7 2,234.2 1,783.4 244.9 514.5 4,924.7

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets in order to show a true and
fair view. As a consequence, the cost of (ixed assets, as adjusted for any amortsation in the year, is £85.7 million (2002 - £76.0 milion) lower than
it would have been had this teatment not been adopted.

16 United Utilities Water PLC
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10 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Infrastructure renewals

Expenditure on maintaining the operating capabhility of the water and wastewater network in accordance with defined standards of service
is capitalised, and depreciation is charged on the expenditure over the period of the Asset Management Plar, in accordance with FRS 15.

The amount capitalised in fixed assets is as follows:

£rn
Excess expendiiure over depreciation at 1 April 2002 on maintaining the operating capability of the network 28.9
Expenditure on maintaining the network in the year 67.5
Depreciation for the year (96.7)
Excess depreciation over expenditure at 31 March 2003 (0.3)
Within tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases at the fofiowing amounts:
2003 2002
£ Em
Cost:
Operational structures 250.8 250.8
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment 0.5 0.5
At 31 March 251.3 251.3
Accumulated depreciation:
Operational structures (81.4) (71.2)
Fixtures, fittings. tools and equipment {0.5) {0.5)
At 31 March 81.9) (77.7)
Net book value:
Cperational structures 169.4. 1738
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment = -
At 31 March 169.4 173.6
The depreciation charge for the year for assets held under finance leases is £4.2 million (2002 - £4.4 million).
2003 2002
£m im
Capital commitments:
Contracted but not provided for 160.5

3592
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11 Fixed asset investments

Shares in subsidiary Cther
uadertakings investments Total
fm £Em Em
Group and company
Cost:
At 1 April 20C2 and 31 March 2003 0.0 0.4 0.4

Details of subsidiary, with regard to the company, and other investments, with regard to the company and group, all of which are unlisted

and registered in England and Wales are:

Subsidiary undertakings Description of helding Proportion held Nature of business
North West Water Finance PLC Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% Raising finance
Cther nwvestments Description of holeging Proportion held Nature of husiness
WRc plc ‘A’ Crdinary shares of £1 each 9.84% Water and wastewater
research
8% convertible unsecured 26.54%

ican stock 2014

Paypoint Network Limited Ordinary shares of 1 pence each 0.06% Cash collection service
Deferred shares of 1 pence each 0.06%

12 Debtors
Group and Group and
Company Company
2003 2002
£m £m
Trade debtors 1276 152.3
Amounts owed by group undertakings 53.2 65.2
Other debtors 28.0 11.8
Prepayments and accrued income 56:5 58.6
265.3, 287.9

Amounts cwed by group undertakings represent amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings, which include £40.7 million
floating rate loans (2002 - £49.4 milien). Within prepayments and accrued inceme is £11.7 milfion which falls due after more than one

year {2002 - £7.5 million).

13 Current asset investments

Group and Group and

Company Company

2003 2002

...... £m Em

Cash on deposit L1880 10.0
Other unlisted investments 285.0 175.0
453.0 185.0

Maturity profile of cash on deposit is overnight to 12 menths, with amounts repayable on maturity.

18 United Utilities Water PLC
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group and Group and
Carnpany Company
2003 2002
£m £m
Loans 66.6
Bark overdrafts and temporary borrowings 29.8
Chligations under finance leases -
Trade creditors 215
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 66.1
Dividends 129.8
Other creditors 0.4
Taxation and social security 2.4
Accruals and deferred income 287.4
604.0
15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Group and Group and
Cornpany Compary
2003 2002
em i
Loans 22,2172 1,711.1
Obligations under finance leases 81.0 199.6
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 454.5. 454.5
Other creditors ‘ 3.9
Deferred grants and contributions (note 16} 71.0
28909 2,440
16 Deferred grants and contributions (see note 15)
£m
Group and company
As at 1 April 2002 71.0
Received in the year 6.4
Profit and 1oss account {3.3)
At 31 March 2003 74.1
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17 Provision for liabilities and charges

Deferred tax {note 18] Resiructuring Total
fm tm Em
Group and company
As at 1 April 2002 186.1 5.7 191.8
Utilised - (2.8) (2.8}
Profit and loss account 62.9 (2.9) 60.0
At 31 March 2003 249.0 - 249.0
18 Deferred tax
Group and Group and
Company Company
2003 2002
£ £m
Accelerated capital allowances 881.6
Short-term timing differences {31.5)
Undiscounted provisicn for deferred tax 850.1
Discount {664.0)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 186.1
19 Borrowings
Group and Group and
Company Company
. 2003 2002
£m fm
Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings : 30.8 29.8
Term loans © 2,763, 2,232.2
Finance leases 18%.7 199.6
2,461.6
Repayments fall due as follows:
Year ending 2003 Year ending 2002
31 March £m 31 March £m
Alter five years 1,375.7 2008+ 1,784.6
From four ta five years 881.5 2007 52.2
From three to four years 46.5 2006 444 4
From two to three years 463.7 2005 50.0
From one to two years 45,3 2004 34.0
After more than one year 2,812.7 2,365.2
Within one year 2004 170.9 2003 96.4
2,461.6

Loans repayable by instalments partly after five years comyprise bank and other loans repayable between 2009 and 2053. Interest rates range
from 0.75 per cent to 14.83 per cent {2002: Q.75 per cent to 14,83 per cent} on £1,106.8 milkon (2002: £1,557.7 milion} and are at floating rates

on £268.9 milion {£2002: £226.9 million).

20  United Utilities Water PLC
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19 Borrowings (continued)

Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings

The group had available unutiised committed bank faciliies of £295milion (2002 -~ £320 milicn). The amounts currenily unutilised expire as
follows:

£m

One to two years 55.0

Alter two years 240.0

Total 295.0

Taking into account off balance sheet instruments, net debt can be analysed as follows:

Weighted average interest rate Welghted average period

Borrowings at 31 March at which borrowings are fixed for which interest is fixed

2003 2002 2002 2003, 2002

Em £m % years! years

Fixed rate borrowings - sterling 2,432.1° 2.064.1 7.0 7.2 2.9 4.1
Floating rate borrowings - sterling 5515 387.5
2,9836 2,461.6
Floating rate parent undertaking loan - sterfing (40.7) (37.7)
Short-term investments - sterling 453.0) .. {185.0)
Cash at bank : (2.5) (24.3)

Net debt at 31 March Je¢3 2,214 5

Floating rate borrowings are based on LIBOR.

Financial instruments and risk management

The primary financial risks faced by the group are exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. The board has reviewed and agreed policies for
managing each of these risks as summarnised below. The board has also approved all of the classes of financial instruments used by the group.
The group's treasury function, which is authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the group, reports at least annually to the board,
The group uses a wide variety of financial instruments, induding derivatives, to raise finance for its operations and to manage the risks arising frem
those operations.

The group borrows in the majer global debt markets in & range of currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest, using derivatives
where appropriate to generate the desired effeciive currency profile and interest basis.

Under an interest rate swap, the group agrees with another party to exchange at specific intervals the difference between fixed rate and
floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed notienal principal amount. The netional principal of these instruments reflects
the extent of the group’s involverment in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk which is assessed by reference to the
fair value.

Under a currency rate swap, the group agrees with another party tc exchange the principal amount of twe currencies together with interest
amounts in the two currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest rate basis and the principal amount. The principal of these instruments
reflects the extent of the group’s involvement in the instruments.

Al transactions are undertaken to manage the risks arising from underlying business activities and no specufative trading is undertaken.

The counterparties to these instruments generally consist of firancial institutions and other bodies with good credit ratings. Although the group is
potentially exposed to credit loss In the event of non-performance by counterparties, such credit risk is contenlled through credit rating reviews of
the counterparties and fimiting the tetal amount of exposure to any one party. The group does not believe it is exposed to any material
concentrations of credit risk.

As noted above, the group uses derivatives to manage its exposure to currency risk on its borrowings. Accordingly, the group has no materiat
unhedged foreign currency exposures.

Financial instruments utiised by the group can be summarised as follows:
a) Interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps are used solely to manage foating rate borrowings in order 1o reduce the financial risk of the group from petentiat future

changes in medium-term interest rates.
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b) Financial futures
Financial futures are used to manage the group’s exposure 1o possible future changes in short-term Interest rates,

c) Forward contracts
The group generally hedges foreign exchange transaction exposures up to one year forward. Hedges are put in place using forward coritracts at
the time that the forecast exposure becomes reasonably certain.

d} Currency swaps
The group uses currency swaps to hedge currency exposure where debt is raised in one currency to fund in a different currency.

Fair values of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are made at a spedcific point in time, based on relevant market information and information about, the financial instrument.
These estimates are subjective in nature and invoive unceriaintes and matters of signfficant judgement and therefore cannot be determined
precisely. Changes in assumplicns could significantly alfect the estimates.

200% 2003 2002 2002

Bock value Book value Fair value

£ £m £m

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 170.9 170.9° 96.4 96.4
Long-term debt 2.812.7 3.142.0 2,365.2 2.428.8
72,9836 3,312, 24616 2.525.2

Interest rate swaps - - 38.4
Foreign exchange contracts and swaps - - {32.3)
Total financial instruments 2,983.6 3,138.7 2.461.56 2.531.3

Fair values have been estimated using the following methods and assumptions:

Current assets and liabilities
Financial instruments included within current assets and fiabilities {excluding cash and borrewings) are generally short-term in nature and
accordingly their fair values approximate 10 their book values.

Long term receivables and liabilities
The fair values of financial instruments included within long-tarm receivables and liabilites {excluding borrowings) are hased on discounted cash
flows using appropriate market interest rates.

Net borrowings and non-equity interests (excluding foreign exchange contracts)

The camying values of cash and short-term borrowings and current assel investments approximated to their fair values because of the short-term
maturity of ihese instruments, The fair value of quoted long-term borrowings and guaranteed preferred securities is based on year end mid-market
quoted prices. The fair value of other long-term biorrowings is estimated by discounting the future cash fiows to riet present values using
appropriate market interest rates prevailng at the year end.

Currency and interest rate swaps

The group enters into currency and interest rate swaps in order 1o manage its foreign curency and interest rale exposures. The [air value of these
financial instruments was estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net present values using appropriate market rates prevaiing at the year
end. The carrying anc fair values of currency and interest rate swaps inciude the related accrued interest receivables and payables,

Hedges
Unrecognised gains and Iosses on financial assets and fiabilities for which hedge accounting has been used at the balance sheet date were
£315.2 million and £141.0 milion respectively (2002 - £137.3 milion and £143.4 milion).

The group anticipates that £55.5 millicn of these gaing and £80.3 million of these losses will be reafised in the forthceming financial year
(2002 - £47.1 mijfion and £38.3 million). Of the unrecognised gains and losses on hedges as at 1 Aprl 2002, the net gain in the period's profit
and loss account was £10.5 millon.
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20 Called up share capital and share premium accounts

Group and Group and
Company Company
20G3:.. 20462
£m::: £m

Authorised share capital

650,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 650.0
223,437,000 preference shares cof £1 each 223.4
Allotted and fully paid share capital
431,930,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 431.9
130,000,000 7% preference shares of £1 each 130.0
93,437,000 0% preference shares of £1 each g3.4
655.3
Share premiurm account 5 647,8 647.8
Preference sharehclders are not entitled to receive notice of, attend or vole at, any general meeting of the company. However, prefererice
shareholders receive priority to other classes of shareholders cn a winding up, liquidation or other return of capital to shareholders of the
company. The preference shares have a redemption date of 1 October 2099
21 Profit and loss account
Group and
Company

2003,

At 1 April 2002
Profit for the year

At 31 March 2003

As allowed by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the company has not presented its own profit and loss account. The company's profit for
the financial year befcre dividends is £144.8 million.

22 Pensions

The company participates in United Utifites PLC's two funded defined benefit schemes -~ the United Utiliies Pension Scheme (UUPS) and the
Electricity Supply Pensicn Scheme ([ESPS), of which the ESPS is closed to new employees. UUPS alse includes a defined contribution section
which constitutes less than 0.5 per cent of the total asset value. The assets of these schemes are held in trust funds independent of United
Utiities PLC's finances.

For UUPS and ESPS, the pension cost under the accountng standard SSAP 24 have been assessed in accordance with the advice of & firm
of actuaries, Mercer Human Resource Consulting, using the projected unit method. For this purpose, the actuarial assumptions adopted are
based upon investment growth of 6.0 per cent per annum, pay growth of 4.0 per cent per annum and increases 1o pension in payment and
deferred pension of 2.5 per cent per annum. The actuarial value of the assets was taken as the market value of the assets,

The last actuarial valuations of the two schemes were carmried out as at 31 March 2001, The combined market value of United Utlities PLC's
share of the assets of the two schemes at the valuation date was £1,833 million. Using the assumpticns adopted for SSAP 24 the combined
actuarial value of the assets represented 113 per cent of the value of the accrued benelfits after allowing for expected future earnings increases. In
deriving the pension cost under SSAP 24, the surplus in the schemes s being spread over the future working iifetime of the existing members.

For UUPS, the employers contributions have teen assessed in accordance with the advice of Mercer Human Resource Consulting using
different assumptions from those described above. For ESPS, the employer's contributions have been assessed in accordance with the advice of
a firm of actuaries, Bacon and Woodrow, using dilferent assumptions and methods from those described above,

The company also operates a sgries of unfunded. unapproved retirement benefit schemes. The cost of the unfunded, unapproved retirement
benefit schemes is included in the total pension cost, on a basis consistent with SSAP 24 and the assumptions set out above.

The tota! pension cost for the period was £6.4 milion (2002 — £4.3 million). A prepayment of £11.7 million is included in the balance sheet at
31 March 2003 (2002 - £7.5 millicn).
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Notes to the accourts {continued;

22 Pensions (continued}

The company is unable to identify its share of the schemes’ assets and fiabilities on a consistent and reasonable basis. As permitted by FRS 17
Retirement Benefits, these schemes wil be acceunted for by the company when the accounting standard is fully adopted, as if the scheme were
a defined contribution scheme, The latest full actuarial valuations were carried out at 31 March 2007 and were updated for FRS 17 purposes by
qualified independent actuaries. Information in respect of the schemes as a whole is set out below.

FRS 17 wansiionad disclnsue

The pension cost igures used in these acceounts comply with the current pension cest accounting standard SSAP 24, A naw pension cost
accounting standard, FRS17 'Retirement benefits’, was originally intended to be appled in the accounts for the year ending 31 March 2004 and
subsequent years. However. during the year. the Accounting Standards Board {ASB) has defesred the full implementation of FRS 17. Under
Iransiticnal arrangements, the group is required to disclose the folowing information about its pension arrangements and the figures that would
have been shown under FRS 17 in the financial staterments.

The latest formal actuarial valuations of the schemes were carried out as at 37 March 2007. The valuation of liabilties detailed below has been
derived by projecting forward the position at 31 March 20C1 and has been performed by an independent actuary, Mercer Human Resource
Consulting. FRS 17 gives the present value of the pension liabilities by discounting pension commitments (ncluding an allowance for salary
growth), at an AA corporate bond yield. Deferred pensions are revalued to retirement age in ine with the schemes’ rules and statutory
requirements. The major {inancial assumptions used by the actuary were as folows,

At 31 March

2002

Discount rate 5.00%
Pensionable salary growth 4.30%
Pension increases 2.80%
Price infiation 2.80%

The assets and liabifites of the United Utiliies PLC group wide Schemes, along with the expected rates of return on the Schemes' assets as at 31
March 2003 and 31 March 2002 were as {ollows:

AL 31 March 2003 A 31 March 2002

Expected. Expecterd

rated of Tatal

£ £m

Equities 8.25% 1,137.5
Property 8.25% 735
Bonds 6.00% 233.0
Gifts 5.25% 302.5
Other 5.25% 28.3
Market value of assets G 1,967.4. 1,774.8
Present value of Schemes' liabiiities ' {1,993.3)" (1,753.2)
Implied {deficit)/surplus in the Schemes {425.8) 21.6
Related deferred tax asset/liability) +127.7 (6.5}
Net pension (iabllity)/asset under FRS 17 {298.1) 15.1
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MNotes 1o the accounts {continuad)

23 Operating leases

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery
2002 2002
Em £m
The company and group is committed to making the following payments
during the year:
Leases which expire:
Within one year - 0.3
Between two and five years - 2.4
Alfter five years 09 -
0.9 2.7

24 Related party transactions

The company has disclosed transactions with its ultimate holding company and associated companies within the United Utilities group in note 8 of

the Regulatory Accounts.

25 Ultimate parent undertaking

The accounts of the company are consolidated in the group accounts of the ulimate parent undertaking, United Utlliies PLC. a company

registered in England and Wales. Copies of the accounts of United Utllities PLC may be obtained from the Company Secretary, United Utlities PLC,

Dawson House, Great Sankey, Warrington WAS 3LW,
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Regulatory accounting information

The Regulatery Accounts on pages 28 1o 42 have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
issued by the Director General of Water Services.

Turnover and net operating assets for the non-appeinted business, as
defined by Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, are not material and,
therefore, the current cost profit and loss account, balance sheet and
cash flow statement show the figures for the total business.

Independent auditor’s report

to the Director General of Walter Services (“the Reguiator”) on the Regulatory Accounts of United Utilities Water PLC ("the Appointee”

or "the Company”)

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2003 which comprise the historic cost
accounts, comprising the profit and loss account and balance
sheet, and the current cost accounts comprising the profit and loss
account, balance sheet, cash flow statement, the notes to the cash
flow statement and the redated notes numbered 1 to 8. These have
heen prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Regulator in accordance with
Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment of the Company as a water
and sewerage undertaker under the Waler Industry Act 1997 ("the
Licence”}. Our audit work has beaen undertaken so thal we might
state to the Regulator those matters that we have agreed to state
to them in cur report ard for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility for our
audit work, for our report, cr for the opinions we have formed to
anycne other than the Regulator,

Basis of preparation

The Regulatory Accounts have been prepared under the historical
and current cost conventions (as applicable} and in accordance with
Condition F of the Company's Licence, Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines ("the RAGs") issued by the Regulator anc the accounting
policies set out in the notes to the Regulatory Accounts.

The Regulatory Accounts are separate frem the statutory
financial statements of the Company and have not been prepared
under the basis of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the
United Kingdom ("UK GAAP"). Financial information other than that
prepared on the basis of UK GAAP doeas not necessarily represent
a true and fair view of the financial performance or financial position
of a company as shown in financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Respective responsibilities of the Regulator,

the Directors and auditors

The nature, form and content of Regulatery Accounts are
determined by the Regulater. It is not appropriate for us to assess
whether the nature of the information being reported upon is
suitable or appropriate for the Regulator’s purpases. Accordingly
we make ne such assessment.
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The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Regulatory
Accounts in accordance with Condition F of the Company's
Licence are set out in the statement of directors’ respensibilities on
page 5.

Our responsibility is to audit the Reguiatory Accounts in
accordance with United Kingdem Auditing Standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board, except as stated in the *Basis of audit
opinion’, below and having regard to the draft guidance dated 30
May 2003 contained in Audit Technical Release XX/03 ‘Reporting
te Regulators of Regulated Entities”.

We report to you our opinion as te whether the Regulatory
Accounts contain the information reguired to be published and
submitted to the Regulator to comply with Condition F of the
Company’s requlatory licence, that the historic and current cost
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with, as appropriate, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1.03,
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2.03, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3.05 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4.02 issued by
the Regulator and that the informaticn provided is in agreement
with the underlying accounting records. We also report to you i, in
our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records
or if we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

We read the cther information contained within the Reguiatory
Accounts and consider the implications for cur report if we become
aware of any misstatements or material inconsistencies with the
Reguiatory Accounts.

Basis of opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with United Kingdem
auditing standards issued by the UK Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounts. [t also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the
Regulatory Accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are
censistently applied and adequately disclosed.
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Indenendent auditor's report {continued)

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order 1o provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.

However, as the nature, form and content of Regufatory
Accounts are determined by the Regulator, we did not evaluate the
overall adequacy of the presentation of the information, which
would have been required If we were 1o express an audit opinicn
under United Kingdom auditing standards.

QOur opinicn on the Regulatory Accounts is separate from our
opinion on the statutory accounts of the Company on which we
reported on 15 July 2003, which are prepared for a different
purpose. We do not, and will not, by virtue of this report assume
any responsibility, whether in contract, negligence or otherwise, in
refation to our audits of the Company's statutory financial
statements required by the Companies Act 1985.

Audit opinions

i) Unaualified opivdon n respect of regulstory complianos

In our opinion the Regulatory Accounts contain the information for

the year to 31 March 2003 required to be published and submitted

to the Regulaicr by United Utllities Water PLC tc comply with

Conditicn F of the Instrument of Appointment. granted by the

Secretary of State for the Environment, of the Company as a water

and sewerage undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1997.

In respect of this information we report that in our opinion:

a. proper accounting records have been kept by the Appointee
as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the Instument;

b. the information is in agreement with the Appointee’s accounting
records, complies with the reguirements of Condition F of the
Instrument and has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines issued by the Office of
Water Services;

c. the Regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages
28 tc 29, present fairly the revenues and costs, assets and
liabilities of the Company and its appointed business in
accerdance with the Company's Licence and Regulatory
Guideline 2.03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3.05
and Regufatory Accounting Guideline 4.02 issue by the
Regulator; and
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d. the Regulatory current cost accounting information on pages
30 to 40 present fairly the revenues and costs, assets and
tiabilites of the Company and its appainted business in
accordance with the Company’s licence and in accordance with
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1.03, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3.05 and Regufatory Accounting Guideline 4.02
issued by the Regulator,

# Viasdiffed opindon on HEStasio oSt sooourts n respect of

FRS12 and FRE15
As explained on page 29, to comply with the instructions of the
Regufator, the Regufatory Accounts do not comply with FRS12
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and FRS15
Tangible Fixed Assets in respect of infrastructure renewals
acceounting. Adoption of FR$12 and FR515 would have required
restatement of the cost and accumulated depreciation of
infrastructure fixed assets to reflect infrastructure renewals
expenditure, depreciation and retirement of assets since the year
ended 31 March 1991, when renewals accounting was first
adopted. Accordingly, infrastructure renewals provisions as at 31
March 2002 and 31 March 2003 would have been included within
infrastructure fixed assets. The non-compliance with FRS12 and
FRS15 in respect of infrastructure renewals accounting wouid have
had no effect on the profit and loss account for the years ended 31
March 2002 and 31 March 2003 other than to reclassily the
infrastructure renewals charges as depreciation.

Except for non-compliance with FRS12 and FRS15 inrespect
of infrastructure renawals, in our opinion, the historical cost
Regulatory Accounts on pages 28 to 29 prepared under the
historical cost convention, present fairly the revenues, costs,
assets and liabilities of the Company and its appointed business.

bﬂ)ﬁ ;*\x 4/|;dj~&-

Deloitte & Touche

Chartered Accountants and Reqgistered Auditors
Manchester

15 July 2003




Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Summiarised company historical cost profit and
§§}g§ &{:ﬁ@iﬁﬂ? for the year ended 31 March  100's

2002

£m

Turnover Lo eTe 952.0
Cperating costs : {624.5) (572.0)
Qperating income ' 1.7 4.3
Operating profit : 349.1 384.3
Other income . 9.1 1.2
Net interest payable (158.7): (148.1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 198.5 237.4
Taxation (53.7_}__ _ (21.6)
Profit for the year ‘dag. 215.8
Dividends (205.8) (203.0)
Retained (loss)/profit for the year {60.8): 12.8

28 United Utilities Water PLC




Annual Report & Accounts 2003

Summarised company historical cost balance sheet

asat3i March 2007

Restated
2002
£m
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 4,895.8
Investments 0.4
Total fixed assets 4,896.2
Cumrentassets e
Stock 3.0 2.9
Debtors 224.6 267.0
Cash at bank 2.5 24.3
Short-term investments 4937 234.8
Total current assets 723.8 529.0
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings {170.8) {96.4)
Dividends payable {1 31.5) (122.8)
Other creditors (407.6) (377.8)
Total creditors {7100} (604.0)
Net current assets/(liabilities) (75.0)
Total assets less current liabilities 4,821.2
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings (2,365.9)
Other creditors (3.2)
Total creditars (2,369.1)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
- Deferred tax (249.0} - (186.1)
- Other provisions : (5.7
Deferred income [ T {11.0)
Net assets employed 21285 2,189.3
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 655.3
Share premium 647.8
Profit and loss account 886.2
Capital and reserves 2,1898.3

In the preparation of the statutory accounts, the company has followed industry praciice and adopted the infrastructure renewals accounting basis
as set out in FRS 15 'Tangible fixed assets’. However, for the puposes of the regulatory accounts, Ofwat has requested that FRS 15 is not
appled for infrastructure renawals accounting, thereby providing a basis consistent with pricr years. The infrastructure renewals accrual of £0.3

million in 2003 (£28.9 million prepayment - 2002) is therefore shown within creditors, not fixed assets.

The prior year figures have baen restated due 1o the reclassification of a group loan of £49.4 milion from non-trade debtors, to cash and

investrments in accordance with Ofwat guidance.
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Current cost profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March  Qc o 3

2002
Note £m
Turnover 2 952.0
Current cost operating costs 3 (662.8)
Operating income 2 1.6
272.2 290.8
Working capital adjustment 2 2.7 0.5
Current cost operating profit 274.9 291.3
Other income a1 1.2
Net interest payabie {(159.7) {148.1)
Financing adjustment 754 0.9
Current cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 175.3
Taxation
- Current tax (15.5)
- Deferred tax (6.1)
Current cost profit attributable to shareholders 153.7
Dividends {203.0)
Current cost loss retained (49.3)

The cost of senvices provided by Vertex Data Science Limited, an associated company of United Utilities Water PLC, has been analysed across
operating costs as if the service were carried out by United Utilities Water PLC, in accordance with BAG4 guidelines.

Current cost balance sheet

as at 31 March

Restated
2002
Note £m
Tangible assets 4 34,977.2
Third party contributions since 1989-90 (181.2)
Working capital 6 {87.8)
Net operating assets 34,708.2
Cash and investments 234.8
Non-trade debters 6.0
Non-trade creditors due within one year (145.9)
Creditors due after one year (2,369.4)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
- Deferred taxation (249.0}. {186.1)
- QOther provisions - 5.7
Dividends payable (13151 (129.8)
Net assets employed 33,0506 32,1121
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 655.4
Share premium account 647.8
Profit and loss account (229.3)
Current cost reserve 31,038.2
Shareholders’ funds 150.6 32,412.1

The prior year figures have been restated due to the reclassification of a group loan of £49.4 milion from non-trade debtors, to cash and

investments in accordance with Ofwat guidance.
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Current cost cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March Qo 4

. Restated Restated
2003 - o3 2002 2002
£m £m frn £m
Net cash flow from operating activities 610.7 629.7
Returns on investments and servicing of finance }
interest received S 10.7.. o 183
Interest paid (158.6) (145.1)
Interest in finance lease rental (8.0) : (7.9)
Non-equity dividends paid (9.1) (e.1n
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (165.0) (145.8)
Taxation received/{paid) 5.8 (11.8)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Gross cost of purchase of fixed assets (477.6) (323.7)
Receipt of grants and centributions 135 5.3
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (67.5) {80.8)
Disposal of fixed assets 5.4
Net cash outflow from investing activities ' (529.6) (389.8)
Equity dividends paid (194.8} (191.2)
Management of liquid rescurces
Short-term deposits {259.3) 211
Net cash outflow before financing (87.8)
Financing 106.9
Increase in cash and overdrafts 19.1

Naotes to the current cost cash flow statement

2602
£fm
Reconciliation of current cast operating profit to net cash flow from operating activities :
Current cost operating profit 274.9 291.3
Working capital adjustment (2.7} {0.5)
Changes in stocks - 0.5)
Receipts from other income 9.1 1.2
Current cost depreciation 245 4 217.2
Effect of other deferrals and accruals on operating activity cashflow (3.9) -
Current cost profit on disposal of fixed assets - {0.9) {1.6)
Decrease in debtors and prepaid expenses 1497 337
Increase in crediters and accrued expenses 121 8.2
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 67.5 80.8
Movement in cther provisicns : (5:7) 0.1
Net cash inflow from operating activities 610.7 629.7

The analysis of movement in net debt required by RAG 3.04 is shown in the notes 1o the historic cost cash flow statement on page 9.
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o

Notes 1o the current cost cash flow statement {continued}

2002
£Em

Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the cash flow statement

Financing

Capital element in finance lease rentals (9:9) -

New bank loans : 627.9 108.8

Repayment of bank loans ' (78.2) {1.9)

Net cash inflow from financing ©..539.8 106.9

At T April
20025 Cashflow Cashflow
Em.. £m £m

Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash at bank, in hand (21.8}
Overdralts 29.4
1.6
Debt due alter one year (566.1)
Cebt due within one year 16.4
Finance leases 9.9
(539.8)
Current asset investments 259.3
Net debt (272.9)
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Notes 1o the current cost accounts

1 Current cost accounting policies

These accounts have been prepared for the total business of United Utilities Water PLC in accordance with guidance issued by the Director
General of Waler Services for modified real term financial staterments suitable for reguiation in the water industry. They measure profitability on the
basis of real financial capital maintenance in the context of assets which are valued at their current cost value to the business.

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of existing assets as at 31 March 1998 was underiaken during 1688/99 and the adjustments to
assel values as a result of that exercise was included within the tangible fixed asset note. In the intervening years, between AMP surveys, values
are restated 1o take account of changes in the general level of inflation as measured by changes in the Retail Price Index {RP), and any cther
significart changes m asset records identified during the year,

The accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in the statutory histerical accounts except as set out below.

(a} Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operational use are valued at the replacerment cost of their operating capability. To the extent that the regulatory regime does not allow
such assets to earn a return high enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of the value to the business principle. Also, no
provision is made for the possible funding of future replacements by contributions from third partes and to the extent that some of thase assets
would on replacement be so funded, replacement cost again differs from value to the business.

i Ooorationsl assets
Non-specialised cperational assets are valued on the basis of open market value for existing use at 31 March 1998 and have been expressed in
real terms by indexing using the RPI since that date.

Specialised operational assets are valued on the basis of information provided by the AMP. Values are adjusted by changes in RPI between
Pericdic Reviews.

The unamortised porticn of third party contributions received is deducted in arriving at net operating assets {as described below].

i Infrastruchve asseis
Mains, sewers, impounding and raw water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipefines and sea outfalls are valued at replacement cost determined
principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP.

In the intervening years, values are restated to take account of changes in the general level of inflation as measured by changes in the RPI over
the year.

G Other fixed asagis
All other fixed assets are valued principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP. Between Periodic Reviews. values are restated for inflation
as measured by changes in the RPI,

(b} Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third party contributions received since 31 March 1990 are carried forward to the extent that any balance
has not been credited to revenue. The balance carried forward is restated for the change in the RPI for the year and treated as for deferred
income.

(c) Real financial capital maintenance adjustments
These adjustments are made to historical cost profit in order to arrive at profit after the maintenance of financial capital in real terms.

§  Working caplial adjustmeant
This is calculated by applying the change in RPI over the year to the opening total of trade debtors and stock less trade creditors.

i Financing adustment
This is calculated by applying the change in RP! over the year to the opening balance of net finance which comprises all monetary assets and
linbilities other than ¢ equity shareholders, which are not included in working capital.

{5 Depreciation adiustment
This is the difference between depreciation based on the current cost value of assets in these financial statements and depreciation charged in
arriving at histerical cost profit.

i Biaposal of fxed assets adjusiment
This is the difference between the book values of realised assets in the current cost financial statements and in the historical cost financial
statements.

(d) Aliocation of costs to principal services

Direct costs are charged to the sub-service areas to which they are attributable, as defined in RAG4, whereas business activities and
indirect costs are allocated on an activity basis, using quantitative measures such as headcount and other methods reflecting consumption
of the service.
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oS 10 the current cost accounts {continued)

2 Analysis of turnover and operating income

2003 2002
Water Sewerage Water Sewerage
Services services Total services services Tetal
£m £m £m £em £m £Em
Turnover
Tariff basket
- Measured 117.8 175.2 293.0
- Unmeasured 258.2 288.7 546.9
- Trade effluent - 15.5 15.5
376.0 479.4 855.4
Non-tariff basket
- Revenue grants 0.2 - 0.2
- Large user revenues 41.3 335 74.8
- Other scurces 4.7 1.0 5.7
- Third party services 131 2.8 15.9
Total turnover 435.3 516.7 952.0
Operating income
Current cost profit on disposal of fixed assets 1.3 0.3 1.6
Working capital adjustmant 0.2 0.3 0.5
Total Operating income 1.5 0.6 2.1
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Notes to the current cost accounts {continued)

3 Current cost operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2003

Service analysis

Water services

Sewerage services

Resource Water supply Sewage Sludge treatment  Sewerage service
and treatment Distribution subtetal Sewerage treatment and disposal subrotal
£m £ im £rn £ £m £m
Direct costs
Employment costs 8.2 7.7 15.9 1.8 11.3 6.3 18.5
Power 4.4 45 9.0 1.4 7.8 3.7 129
Agencies - - - 4.7 - - 4.7
Hired and contracted services 1.5 1.7 13.2 7.6 3.9 8.8 20.3
Materials and consumables 5.0 0.9 59 c.1 2.6 2.9 5.6
Service charges EA 11.1 - 117 1.7 3.3 - 5.0
Other direct costs - 16 1.6 0.4 Q.7 0.3 14
Total direct casts 30.2 26.5 56.7 17.8 29.6 22.0 69.4
General and support expenditure 12.7 239 36.6 35 17 4 10.0 31.0
Functional expenditure 42.9 50.4 8933 21.4 47.0 32.0 100.4
Operating expenditure
Customer services 30.6 30.8
Scientific services 5.9 2.9
Other business aclivities 2.8 2.8
Total business activities 393 36.5
Local authority raies 26.2 21.3
Doubtful debts 21.5 25.4
Exceptional items (1.3) {1.8)
Total opex less third party services 179.0 182.0
Third party services -
operating expenditure 15.2 -
Total operating expenditure 194.2 182.0
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 9.8 347 439 2386 - - 23.6
Infrastructure renewals
accrual/{prepayrnent) on 34 3.3 10.8 - - 10.8
Current cost depreciation {allocatad) 52.2 23.1 75.3 8.2 76.0 20.9 1051
Amortisation of deferred credils (2.3) {1.6)
Business activities current cost
depreciation (non allocated) 314 33.0
Capital maintenance excluding 151.6 170.9
third party services
Third party services - capital maintenance 1.9 -
Total capital maintenance 153.5 170.9
Total operating costs 347.7 352.9
CCA (MEA) values:
Service activities 3,1085 9.433.0 12.541.5 21,2417 1,635.9 530.0 23,4076
Business activities 171.0 187.9
Totals 12,712.5 23.595.5
Services for third parties 321 06
Total 12,7446 23,596.1

The depreciation charges from asscciated companies have been reclassified as business activities capital cost in accordance with RAGA,
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Motes to the current cost accounts {continued)

3 Current cost operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2002

Service analysis

Resource

Water services

Water supply

Sewerage services

Sewage  Sludge treatment  Sewerage sefvice

and treatment Distribution subtotal Sewerage treatrnent and disposal subtotal
£m fm £m £m Em £m £m

Direct costs
Employment costs 8.3 8.1 17.4 0.5 10.0 5.1 15.6
Power 2.7 5.9 8.6 1.2 71 3.3 11.6
Agencies - - - 47 - - 4.7
Hired and contracted services 2.9 131 16.0 5.1 7.6 9.1 21.8
Materials and consumables 4.9 0.7 58 0.1 1.9 2.2 42
Service charges EA 1.0 - 11.0 1.5 31 - 4.6
Other direct costs - 2.6 2.6 - 1.0 0.3 1.3
Total direct costs 29.8 31.4 61.2 131 30.7 20.0 63.8
General and support expenditure 10.2 17.7 27.9 18.6 6.2 26.0
Functional expenditure 40.0 49.1 89.1 143 49.3 26.2 89.8
Operating expenditure
Customer services 305 30.8
Scientific services 6.1 3.0
Other business activities 1.3 1.3
Total business activities 379 351
Local authority rates 24.8 10.4
Coubtful debts 141 17.2
Exceptional items 5.0 4.2
Total opex less third party services 17C.9 156.7
Third party services -
operating expenditure 13.8 2.6
Total operating expenditure 184.7 159.3
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 5.8 50.8 56.6 242 - - 24.2
infrastructure renewals
accrual/(prepayment) 07 (3.3) {4.0) 253 - - 253
Current cost depreciation (allocated) 455 226 68.1 8.0 71.6 19.9 99.5
Amortisation of deferred credits (2.0) (1.4}
Business activities current cost
depreciation (non alocated) 24.6 26.3
Capital maintenance excluding 1433 173.8
third party services
Third party services - capital maintenance 1.6
Total capital maintenance 144.9 173.9
Total operating costs 329.5 3332
CCA (MEA) values:
Service activities 2.842.2 9,165.7 12,007.9 20,477 4 1.622.8 474.4 22.574.6
Business activities 173.7 189.1
Service totals 12,181.6 22,763.7
Services for third parties 29.8 2.1
Total 12,211.4 22,765.8
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4 Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type and service for the year ended 31 March 2003

Service analysis

Infrastructure

Operational QOiher tangible

Water services

Infrastructure

Sewerage senvices

Operational  Other tangible

assets assets assels Subtotal assels assels assels Subtotal Total
£rn Em Em tm fm Em £m £rn fm
Gross replacement cost:
At 1 Aprit 2002 11,0064  2.7187 2996 14,0247 204577 39722 318.0 24,7479 38,7726
AMP adjustment - - 79.7 79.7 - - 86.3 86.3 166.0
RP! adjustment 340.6 841 8.3 4330 633.1 123.1 8.3 764.5 1,197.5
Disposals - (16.3) (18.3) (34.8) - {12.6) (17.2) (29.8) 64.4)
Additions 63.4 175.5 206 2585 76.3 162.7 20.8 259.8 519.3
At 31 March 2003 11,4104  2,962.0 389.9 14,762.3 21,1671 4,2454 416.2 25,828.7 40,591.0
Depreciation:
At 1 April 2002 - 1,687.4 125.9 1.813.3 - 1.853.2 128.9 1,982.1 3.795.4
AMP adjustment - - 75.5 75.5 - - 81.8 81.8 157.3
RP{ adjustment - 52.2 2.9 551 - 57.3 3.0 60.3 115.4
Disposals - {(16.7) (18.2) (34.3) - {11.9) {17.00 (28.9) 63.2)
Charge for the year - 75.3 32.8 108.1 - 105.1 322 137.3 2454
At 31 March 2003 - 1,798.8 218.9 2.017.7 - 2,003.7 228.9 2,232.6 4,250.3
Net book value:
At 31 March 2003 11.410.4 1,163.2 171.0 12,7446 21,167.1 2,241.7 187.3 23,596.1 36,3407
At 31 March 2002 11.006.4 1.031.3 173.7 12.,211.4  20,457.7 2,119.0 189.17 22,765.8 34,977.2
Operational assets by service for the year ended 31 March 2003
Service analysis Water services Sewerage services
Non- Non-
Speciaised specialised Specialised specialised
operational operational operational operational
assets assa1s Total assels as5e1s Total
fm fm fm £m fm tm
Gross replacement cost:
AL T April 2002 2,664.2 54.5 2,718.7 3,104 61.8 3,972.2
RPI adjustment 82.4 1.7 84.1 121.2 1.9 1231
Disposals {16.0) (0.3) {16.3} (12.4) (0.2) {12.6)
Additions 173.6 1.9 175.5 160.6 2.1 162.7
At 31 March 2003 2,904.2 57.8 2,962.0 4,1798 65.6 4,245.4
Depreciation:
AL T Aprll 2002 1.679.6 7.8 1,687.4 1,844.9 83 1,853.2
RP! adjustment 52.0 0.2 52.2 57.1 0.2 57.3
Disposals {16.0) 0.1 (18.1) 11.8) 1N (11.9
Charge for the year 74.5 0.8 753 104.2 0.9 105.1
At 31 March 2003 1,790.1 8.7 1,798.8 1,994.4 9.3 2.003.7
Net book value:
At 31 March 2003 1.114.1 49.1 1,163.2 2,185.4 56.3 2,.241.7
At 31 March 2002 8846 46.7 1.031.3 2.065.5 53.5 2,119.0
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5 Regulatory capital value

2003

£m
Opening BRCV for the year 4.873.0
Capital expenditure 666.0
Infrastructure renewals expenditure " go.0
Infrastructure renewals charge {105.0}
Grants and contributions {18.0}
Depreciation (199.0}

Outperformance of regulatory assumptions (5 years in arrears)

Closing RCV carried forward

Average RCV (2002/03 year average prices)

The numbers included above are as published by Ofwat and therefore do not agree with other actual values reflected in the company’s regulatory
financial statements. Al costs have been indexed to March 2003 (RPI - 179.9) prices except for the average RCV, which is shown at year average
prices (RPI - 177.5) in accordance with Ofwat's regulatory accounting guidelines. Capital efficiencies will be taken into account in the caleulation
for the next pericdic review.

6 Working capital

: Restated
2003 2002
£m £m
Stocks 3.0 2.9
Trade debtors 127.6 152.2
Working cash balances (5.4)
Trade payments in advance 49.0
Prepayments and other debtors . 16.0
Trade creditors -[15.8) (21.5)
Short-term capital creditors (158.0) (116.3)
Infrastructure renewals accrual (32.0) (17.9)
Other trade accruals (126.8) {110.2)
Payroll related taxation and social security contributions 2.2) 2.4
Group trade creditors (11.9) {34.2)
Total working capital 57.2) (87.8)

Prior year figures have bean restated dus to a reclassification between trade payments in advance and prepayments and other debtors.

7 Movement on current cost reserve

- 20035 2002

£m £m

At 1 April 31,038.2 30,612.5

AMP adjustment 8.7 -
RP! adjustments:

Fixed assets 450.5

Waorking capital {0.5)

Financing (30.9)

Grants and third party contributions (2.4)

At 31 March 31,038.2

38 United LHilities Water PLG



Annual Report & Accounts 2003

i

MNotes 1o the current Cost accounts {continued)

8 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company

To the best of their knowledge, the directors of United Utilities Water PLC declare that all appropriate transactions with associated companies
have been disclosed and material transactions with associated companies are at arm’s length and no cross-subsidy has cccurred. The materiality
level used for reperting transactions is 0.5 per cent of turnovey.

Borrowings and sums lent
The following loans from associated companies existed at 31 March 2003:

£m Interest rate

United Utilities PLC - 750m US $ Bonds 4545 6.25 10 6.875%

United Utitities Water PLC operates a daily zero balancing sweep banking arrangement with its parent United Utiliies PLC. This has resulted
in a total of £0.8 million net interest payable to United Utllites PLC for the year.

The following leans to associated companies existed at 31 March 2003

£m Interest rate

United Utllities PLC 10.0 4.47% tc 4.58%

Dividends paid to associated undertakings
During the year dividends payable to United Utiities Service Delvery PLC totalled £205.6 million. This comprised a final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2003 of £131.5 milion, an interim dividend of £65.0 milion and a 7 per cent preference share dividend of £9.1 milion.

The ordinary dividend increased by 1.3 per cent in 2002/03. The company's dividend policy is to declare dividends which are consistent with
the company’s performance and the management of the economic risk of the business. This policy has resulted in dividend growth broadly in line
with inflation in the first three years of this review period.
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Notes to the current cost accounts {continued)

8 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company (continued)

Supply of services

Services supplied to United Utilities Water PLC from associated companies.

Naiure of Cornpany Terms of Total value
tlansactions SUppiy of service
£Em
Managed services Vertex Data Science Limited Market tested rates 68.0
based on actual activity
undertaken and
other market testing
Accommodaiion and facility services United Utifiies Faciliies and Property Other market iesting 12.8
Services Limited including benchmarking
Systems development Vertex Data Science Limited Market tested rates 15.6
based on actual activity
undertaken and
other market testing
Group management charge United Utilities PLC Recharge of costs 9.5

Note - The Group Management charge of £9.5 milion from United Utilites PLC represents 51.4 per cent of the total management charge to
subsidiaries. Approximately 80 per cent of tha charge is allccated by activily.

The Variex charging arrangements for the Managed Services are based on aclual activity in the year.

Accommodation and faciity services include accommodation and telephony.

Services supplied by United Utilities Water PLC to associated companies.

Nature of Company Tesrns of Total value
ransactons supply of sarvice

£m
Facility services United Utilities Electricity PLC Recharge of costs 12.9
Assef charges United Utfites Faciliies and Property Other market testing 59

Services Limited

Note - Faclity services include support services, accounting services and procurement.

Turnover of associated companies

Turnover of
associated company

fm
Vertex Data Science Limited 323.0
United Utilities Electricity PLC 310.4
United Utilities Facilities and Property Services Limited 42.3
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Five year summary

Current cost profit and loss account

2002 2001 2000 1909

£m £m £m em

Turnover 971.9 971.7 988.0 1,083.9 1,028.2
Current cost operating costs {700.8} {676.5) (704.6) (708.9) (686.5)
Cperating income 0.9 1.6 4.9 (0.4) (3.9)
Working capital adjustment 27 . 0.5 (0.3) 2.8 3.1
2749 297.3 288.0 377.4 3415

Other Income - 9.1 1.2 2.3 2.6 2.4
Net interest {159.7} (151.2) 1144.0) (134.0) (128.2)
Financing adjustment 75.4 31.5 52.5 51.4 35.1
Current cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 199.7 178.8 198.8 297.4 250.8
Taxation (53.7) (22.0) (50.5} (4.1} {@7.1)
Current cost profit on ordinary activities after taxation 146.0 156.8 148.3 293.3 183.7
Dividends (205.6) (207.2) {206.4) {208.7) (343.8)
Current cost retained profit/{loss) {59.6) (50.4) (58.1) 84.6 (120.1)

Note: All figures in the summary have been restated at current year prices using movements in the average RPI. The figures for 1992 and 2000 do
not reflect any adjustments for the impact of FRS 19 deferred taxation.

Current £ost balance sheet

2003 2002 2001 2000 1989
Em £m £m £m £m
Tangible fixed assets +36,340.7 35,658.7 35,551.1 35,535.6 37,796.9
Third party contributions since 1989-90 < (1964} (184.7) (181.8) (173.6) (165.3)
Working capital T 157.2) {89.5) 140.4) 15.8 (109.1)
Net operating assets 35,0871 35,384.5 35,328.9 35,377.8 37,522.5
Cash and investments 494.0 239.4 264.3 0.4 C.4
Non-trade debtors 28.4 6.1 58.5 53.4 62.5
Non-trade creditors (252:3) (148.8) (110.8) (509.7) (409.1)
Craditors due after one year (2,817.1) (2,415.6) (2,431.4) {1,778.0) {1,676.4)
Provisions (249.0) {195.5) (182.0} (5.7} (3.4)
Divicends payable {131.5) {132.3) (131.5) (131.8) (132.6)
Net assets employed 33,0659.6. . 32,737.8 32,786.2 33,008.4 35,363.9
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 668.2 677.1 692.7 690.4
Share premium account 647.8 660.4 669.2 684.6 702.0
Profit and loss account (288.9) (233.8) 11886.0) 22.3 (62.8)
Current cost reserve 320453 31,643.0 31,625.2 31,608.8 34,034.3
Total capital and reserves 32,737.8 32,786.2 33,008.4 35,363.9

-+ 33,0596

Note: Al figures in the summary have been restated at current year prices using movements in the year-end RPI. The figures for 1999 and 2000
do not reflect any adjustments for the impact of FRS 19 deferred taxation.

41 United LHilities Water PLC




Annual Report & Accounts 2003

]

Regulatory accounts commentary

This review should be read in conjuniction with the chairman's review
and the director's report that form part of the statutory financial
statements.

Movements from prior year and five year trends

Turrorver and Qparaiing ooses
The factors outlined in the Operating and Financial review contribute
to the movernents in turncver and operating costs during the period.

Over the five year period turnover has been impacted by the price
review, which reduced income in 2007, and then increased over the
next two years. Measured sales now represent 38 per cent of total
sales, compared with 33 per cent in 1998/99 as new properties are
always connected with a measured supply.

During the five year period there has been a trend of increased
depreciation and infrastructure renewals charges reflecting the
increases in this capital investrnent programme. Further increases in
costs have resulied from the commissioning of new schemes in the
Quality/New Obligations programmes pattly offset by efficiency
improvements.

her income
The increase from the pricr year results from increased short-term
investments, due to increased prefunding.

Rt intorast

Due to increased cash requirements caused by the company's
capital expenditure programme, borrowing has increased over the last
five years. As a direct consequence net borrowing costs have risen
over the period.

Financing adiusiment

The financing adjusiment over the pericd is a result of the uplift in the
RPI figure. Note 1 cfil on page 33 contains further explanation on this
adjustment,

Taxation

The factors outlined in the Operating and Financial review contribute
10 the movements in taxation during the period. The tax charge is
comparatively high in 1998/99 due to the utilisation of surplus ACT
prior to its abolition.

Dividends

The 1998/99 paymants include a special dividend associated with

the windfall tax. Excluding this payment dividends have risen broadly in
fine with inflation over the period. The basis of the dividend is outlined
on page 39 of the Notes to the current cost accounts under the
heading "Dividends paid to associated undertakings”.

Tangible fixed asssis

Tangible assets increased by £1,363.5 millicn during the year as a
result of the continued investment as part of the asset
management pregramme together with the RPI adjustment to
restate the asset values in real terms, offset by the depreciation in
the year. The reduction in 1999/2000 mainly reflects the Periodic
Review asset revaluation offset by additions in the year.
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Wophing Capital
Movements in working capital for the pericd are outined in note & on
page 38. Trade Debtors have fallen by £24.6m mainly due 1o an
increase in the year-end debt provision and additonal write-cffs of old
uncollectable debt during the year.

Short-term capital creditors have increased reflecting the increase in
the capital expenditure programme in the period.

The increase in the infrastructure renewals accrual is mainly due to
prioritising effort on the nen-infrastruciure maintenance programme.

Cash gnd rmstments

The increase over the five year period is as a resuit of prefunding our

capital expenditure needs. Long term debt is raised when the market
opportunity presents itsell. The sums raised are placed in short term

Investrments until required by the business.

hor rads croditors

The reduction in non trade creditors since 2000 is due to a
reclassification of certain intercompany funding balances from short to
long-term. The rise in the pericd is largely due to long-term debt
becoming payable within the next 12 months.

Crediters dug alisy ong year

The increased level of creditors since 1999 predominanty reflects
the long term debt raised to fund the capital investment programme
and the subsequent prefunding,

Provisians
The increase in provisions from 1999/2000 mainly reflects the
implementation of FRS 19 Deferred Taxation.

Atypical amounts

Atypical amounts in the year were the release of a restructuring
provision of £3.5 million offset by Section 74 Fines reflecting

a charge of £3 milion and a power cost of £0.2 millon relating to
additional pumping on the removal of trihalomethanes.

Changes in the treatment of expenditure
There have Deen no changes in the treatment of expenditure in
2002/03.

Basis of aflocation of expendittire

The revenues, cosls, assets and liabiities are directly allocated to
the appointed business and any other activity or associated
company. except where they relate to common suppaert services.
Thase relating to cormmon support services are apportioned on
the basis of the demands made on each of these support services
by each principal service or activity. Notes to the cument cost
accounts itern 1 {d) on page 33 also outline the cost allocation
palicy to principal services.

Help for vulnerable metered customers

The company has provided help to vulnerable metered

household customers who face hardship resulting from high water
use for essential purpeses. This suppoert amounts ta approximate
£43,000.




